Public Document Pack

-
%// Agenda

Coventry City Council
Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board (5)

Time and Date
11.00 am on Wednesday, 25th July, 2018

Place
Committee Room 3 - Council House

Public Business

1. Apologies and Substitutions
2. Declarations of Interest

3. Minutes (Pages 3 - 8)

(@) To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 26th April, 2018
(b) Matters Arising

4. Suicide Prevention (Pages 9 - 40)
Briefing note of the Director of Public Health and Wellbeing

5. Work Programme 2018-19 (Pages 41 - 48)
Report of the Scrutiny Co-ordinator

6. Any other items of Public Business

Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as matters
of urgency because of the special circumstances involved

Private Business
Nil

Martin Yardley, Deputy Chief Executive (Place), Council House Coventry
Tuesday, 17 July 2018

Notes: 1) The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is
Liz Knight, Governance Services, Council House, Coventry, telephone 7683 3073,
alternatively information about this meeting can be obtained from the following web
link: http://moderngov.coventry.gov.uk

2) Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Liz
Knight as soon as possible and no later than 10.00 a.m. on Wednesday 25" July

Page 1


http://moderngov.coventry.gov.uk/

2018 giving their reasons for absence and the name of the Council Member (if any)
who will be attending the meeting as their substitute.

3) Scrutiny Board Members who have an interest in any report to this
meeting, but who are not Members of this Scrutiny Board, have been invited to notify
the Chair by 12 noon on the day before the meeting that they wish to speak on a
particular item. The Member must indicate to the Chair their reason for wishing to
speak and the issue(s) they wish to raise.

Membership: Councillors F Abbott (By Invitation), R Ali (By Invitation), K Caan (By
Invitation), J Clifford, D Gannon (Chair), P Hetherton, D Kershaw, R Lakha,
R Lancaster, T Mayer, C Miks, D Skinner and D Spurgeon

Please note: a hearing loop is available in the committee rooms

If you require a British Sign Language interpreter for this meeting
OR it you would like this information in another format or
language please contact us.

Liz Knight
Telephone: (024) 7683 3073
e-mail: liz.knight@coventry.gov.uk

Page 2


mailto:liz.knight@coventry.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 3

Coventry City Council
Minutes of the Meeting of Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board (5) held at 10.00
am on Thursday, 26 April 2018

Present:
Members: Councillor D Gannon (Chair)
Councillor J Clifford
Councillor L Kelly
Councillor D Kershaw
Councillor R Lancaster
Councillor M Lapsa
Councillor T Mayer
Councillor C Miks
Councillor S Walsh
Co-Opted Members: Mr D Spurgeon, Coventry Healthwatch
Other Members: Councillors Councillor F Abbott, Cabinet Member for Adult
Services
Others Present: G Burley, South Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust
Employees (by
Directorate)
People: P Fahy
Place: S Bennett, V Castree
Public Business
49, Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests.
50. Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 7 March were agreed and signed as a true
record.

There were no matters arising.
51. Urgent and Emergency Care STP Workstream Update

The Scrutiny Board considered a Briefing Note, together with a presentation at the
meeting, which provided an update on the Urgent and Emergency Care
workstream.

The Programme Mandate for the Urgent and Emergency Care work stream of the
STP was appended to the Briefing Note. This provided an overview of the
workstream and its programme vision which are to deliver enhanced patient care

- Page 3



52.

through improved services and more appropriate access to urgent and emergency
care. The workstream will complement other workstreams which aim to reduce
unscheduled care in local systems. A number of focused reviews will also be
carried out over the next year. The Programme Mandate also provided information
in relation to governance arrangements.

The presentation by Glen Burley, Lead Director of the workstream, covered the
following areas:-

+ Alignment with the Coventry and Warwickshire A and E Delivery Board
* Current Performance (March 2018)

*Influencing Factors

*Achieving Flow System (Through front door (admissions), inside the
hospital and back door (discharge))

*Scope and Challenges

The Scrutiny Board sought information and assurances on a number of issues,
including:-

Statistics and data provided to enable proper scrutiny of the issues

*Target figures set to improve performance and initiatives introduced to
achieve those targets

*How all interested parties, including staff and patients, are engaged and
included in any decision making regarding the introduction of system
improvements

Notwithstanding the complexity of the issue and the national situation in

relation to A and E provision over the Winter period, the Scrutiny Board expressed
serious concerns and disappointment regarding the information provided recent A
and E performance at UHCW. Glen Burley indicated that he would convey the
concerns raised by the Scrutiny Board to UHWC.

RESOLVED that, in light of the Scrutiny Board’s serious concerns and
disappointment in relation to the information provided and the situation in
relation to the A and E performance figures at UHWC over the recent Winter
period, the following issues be considered by the Scrutiny Board in the next
Municipal Year:-

(1) A generic update on the STP as a whole
(2) More data and details on each of the workstreams
(3) Specific A and E Plans and Winter Plans for UHCW

Care Quality Commission (CQC) Local System Review - Outcome and Action
Planning

The Scrutiny Board considered a Briefing Note of the Director of Adult Services
which summarised the outcome of the CQC system review and the action plan
arising from the identification of areas for improvement by the CQC as a result of
the review.

Page 4



The Department of Health asked the CQC to undertake a programme of targeted
reviews in local authority areas. A total of 20 reviews of Health and Social Care
Systems where there are challenges particularly in relation to delayed transfers of
care were announced and Coventry was selected as one of the first 12 areas to be
reviewed.

The Coventry review commenced in December 2017 and a whole system
approach was taken focusing on how people move between health and social
care, with a focus on people over 65 years of age. The review report was
published by CQC on 15 March, 2018 and, in summary, in the course of the
review, the CQC found that there was a system wide commitment to serving the
people of Coventry well and that Coventry was at the beginning of its journey in
ensuring all services worked well in a “joined up way”. However, the review also
highlighted some areas where further work is needed to ensure all those
responsible for providing health and care services worked effectively together.

The Coventry action plan was appended to the Briefing Note and contains the
following seven sections which group together the areas for improvement arising
from the CQC review:-

*Vision and Strategy

*Engagement and involvement
*Performance, pace and drive

*Flow and use of capacity

*Market development

*Workforce

*Information sharing and system navigation

The Scrutiny Board questioned officers on aspects of the Briefing Note and action
plan, particularly in relation to:-

Actions identified in the plan to address issues relating to Leadership
and staff ownership of strategies

*The biggest challenges in delivering the action plan

*The proposed future involvement of Scrutiny in the delivery of the Action
Plan

RESOLVED:-

(1) That the Scrutiny Board notes the outcome of the Review and the
subsequent action plan submitted to CQC following the review

(2) That the Coventry Health and Well-Being Board be requested to

share the system-wide data/dashboards referred to in points 3.1
and 3.2 of the action plan with the Scrutiny Board.

Page 5



53.

54.

55.

University Hospitals Coventry and Warwickshire (UHCW) Quality Account
2017/18

The Scrutiny Board considered a Briefing Note of the Scrutiny Co-ordinator which
introduced the 2017/18 Quality Accounts commentary. The commentary had been
provided by a Task and Finish Group, including Members of the Scrutiny Board, in
response to the UHCW Quality Account.

Quality Accounts are annual reports to the public from providers of NHS
healthcare services about the quality of services they provide. Their purpose is to
encourage the boards and leaders of healthcare organisations to assess quality
across all the healthcare services they provide and encourage them to engage in
the wider processes of continuous quality improvement. Providers are asked to
consider three aspects of quality:-

*Patient experience
«Safety
+Clinical Effectiveness

Quality Accounts are published on the NHS Choices website, as well as being
available in hospitals and other locations to illustrate providers’ commitment to
quality. They are used by the Care Quality Commission to understand how
providers are engaging with patients and stakeholders about quality and the need
for improvement. They can also be used by those monitoring or scrutinising
providers to assess the risks of an organisation and monitor the services provided.

The Briefing Note outlined the role of the Scrutiny Board as building confidence in
the data and the conclusions drawn from it. Scrutiny has the opportunity to provide
a commentary on the local Trusts Quality Accounts which the Trusts are required
to publish unedited and in full. During the year, a Quality Accounts Task and Finish
group made up of representatives from the City Council, Healthwatch Coventry
and Healthwatch Warwickshire has met to provide a joint commentary on the
Quality Accounts for UHCW. A first draft of the commentary was appended to the
Briefing Note and the Scrutiny Board’s views were sought on the document.

RESOLVED that the commentary on the Quality Account produced by the
Task and Finish Group be noted and that the Scrutiny Board request that a
comment be included in relation to ensure information sharing and
openness and transparency with the Scrutiny Board.

Work Programme 2017-18

The Scrutiny Board noted their Work Programme for the current municipal year.

Any other items of Urgent Public Business

There were no items of urgent public business.

Page 6



56. Mr D Spurgeon
The Scrutiny Board extended their congratulations to David Spurgeon on his
recent marriage and thanked him for his continuing contribution to the work of the
Scrutiny Board.

57. Councillor D Gannon

The Chair, Councillor D Gannon, was thanked for his work on the Scrutiny Board
during the course of the Municipal Year.

(Meeting closed at 11.30 am)

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4
o
7%
2
Coventry City Council Briefing Note

To Date
Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Board 25 July 2018

()

Subject
From Suicide Prevention
Liz Gaulton, Director of Public Health and
Wellbeing

Liz.Gaulton@coventry.gov.uk

1 Purpose
To inform and update members on:

1.1 The progress of the Suicide Prevention Strategy signed into action at the Health and
Wellbeing board meeting of November 2016. An update to this was presented in April 2018.

1.2 The Proposed year 2 implementation actions for the Coventry suicide prevention multi
agency steering group

1.3 The progress and proposals for suicide prevention funding in the Coventry and Warwickshire
STP footprint.

2 Recommendations
Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Board is asked to:

2.1 Note the progress update for the Suicide Prevention Strategy and continue to support its
ongoing delivery.

2.2 Note and support the proposals outlined as part of the funding for suicide prevention among
middle aged men in Coventry and Warwickshire.

2.3 Identify recommendations for the appropriate Cabinet Member
3 Information/Background

In November 2016, the Health and Wellbeing Board signed into being a Suicide Prevention
Strategy for 2016-2019 titled: Not one more//one is enough. (Appendix 1) The strategy was
designed to harmonise with the aims and approaches of the West Midlands Combined
Authority WMCA mental health commission and with the strategic aims of our neighbouring
authority Warwickshire. Coventry adopted a ZERO SUICIDE goal based on the
understanding- backed by local Coronial audit data- that suicide is preventable in the
overwhelming number of cases. Coventry adopted a hybrid approach based on:

Page 9



Department of Health 2012 guidance and the Parliamentary Health Select committee
findings.

The Canadian Suicide Safer Community model of gatekeeper/ sentinels who can
identify people at risk and intervene.

A locally appropriate approach rooted in Marmot which seeks to prevent suicide by
mitigating upstream factors.

4. Coventry Suicide Prevention Strategy Progress update and Year 2 Priorities

The Suicide prevention steering group reports to the Health and Well-being Board and is
made up of agencies from:

CWPT

NHS

Crasac

Commissioning

Children’s Social Care
Adult Social Care
Coventry and Rugby CCG
Education

Public Health

West Midlands Ambulance Service
Route 21

Voluntary Action
Samaritans

Mind

The key highlights from the year one strategic priorities are as follows:

Establishment of an active multi agency Steering group

Hosting 2 workshops to share best practice, local data and local excellence with 80
attendees making 35 written commitments

Supporting an emergency services and suicide prevention event at Wasps Home
match for World Suicide prevention day with it takes Balls to Talk, local 999 crews
and Warwickshire County Council.

Facilitating the training of 50 champions and volunteers in level one suicide
prevention.

Planning Suicide awareness training for members
Developing online training for all CCC staff.

Working with Network Rail to reduce the risk around an identified hotspot.

4. Suicide audit

Page 10



An audit has been undertaken of all of the paper Coroners records where the cause of death
was noted as suicide in Coventry from January - December 2017. It should be noted that
discussions have commenced within the Suicide prevention group to look at how the group
receives ‘real time’ information around suicide risks. There were a number of gaps in the
data but the audit still allowed conclusions to be made. The data showed the following:

.. Methods of death
Number of victims Number of victims
100%

10

25 3 1
1 Hanging m 0D Inc Insulin (2)

Train Jump from height
Male Female 1821 2231 3241 4251 5261 62+ R
Number of victims ® Asphyxiation

Mental health concern Substance abuse Relationship Status

15

& <& * &

ol & & S 2 Widowed

S %\)Q \\5\
Q‘:

A
OF Divorcedor separated

~ o c C Alce ( S o/ oW e
Mental health concern Alcohol = Drugs = No/Unknown » Married/in a relationship

There were 30 deaths in Coventry between January - December 2017, where the verdict was
recorded as suicide. This is an average of 8.7 per 100,000 slightly up from the 2014 16 rate
of 8.3 but significantly lower than the National average across England which is 15.4 per
100,000.

The data shows that within the timeframe examined those who were identified as death by
suicide were predominantly males, which is reflective of the national average. This
represents an increase from the Coventry 2014 -2016 audit where 7 out of 10 suicides were
female to a rate of 8.3 out of 10. This is however reflective of national data where the rate of
female suicides is increasing.

The highest risk age bracket was 32-41 which is slightly lower than the national average
where the highest risk group is 40-44. Ethnicity was one category where data was so poorly
recorded that it made analysis impossible.

The predominant method of death was by hanging with 20 of the 30 individuals dying by
hanging. There did not appear to be a clear high risk factor in terms of relationship status
with identified individuals being spread relatively evenly over all of the categories. 36.8% of
identified individuals had made a previous suicide attempt. This suggests that although this
group are not singularly at risk of suicide a previous attempt does put them at higher risk.
46.7% of individuals had visited the GP in the last 6 months. Reasons for these visits
included; for diabetic care, for stress, for DV injuries, for depression, for minor ailments, for
Parkinson’s care, for high blood pressure and stress and for problematic alcohol
consumption. These visits may be cries for help and we need to work with GP’s to ensure
that they are able to spot the signs that someone may be suicidal.

60% of victims had a previous mental health concern. The data also shows that 30% of

individuals had identified drug issues and 20% of individuals had identified alcohol issues.
This would suggest that is necessary to ensure that those working in substance misuse

Page 11



services are equipped to recognise and respond to suicidal behaviour. It may also be useful
to look at a community response within the on and off licence trade. Further examination
showed that: 20% of victims had previously been bereaved by suicide, 16.7% of victims had
recent contact with the police and 16.7% of victims had financial difficulties. The findings will
now be shared with both Coventry Suicide Prevention Group and the STP Suicide
Prevention group to seek assurance that the concerns will be met by current delivery plan
actions or to assess where there are any gaps that require inclusion.

5. It Takes Balls to Talk (ITBTT) Update

Recent Events and Activities:

*Events have been held at local Rugby clubs and Brandon Golf club

«ITBTT attended Coventry and Warwick universities and has been integrated into the
Coventry student wellbeing strategy. Presence on Campus was followed by an increase in
self-referral to Student Support Services.

*Work has begun with Male Dominated Employers. Both the Police and Fire service have
participated in suicide awareness training and sharing of the ITBTT Message which was
positively received.

*Training in Suicide Awareness has been delivered to the Coventry Recovery College.
Upcoming events:

ITBTT have been offered the chance to speak with senior managers in Jaguar Land Rover
and it is hoped that the ITBTT message will be able to be brought to staff directly in their
workplace.

ITBTT will have a presence at fresher's weeks in Coventry and Warwick.

Sky Blues in the Community have gained funding and Proposed a community football project
with ITBTT, combining Mental health support with community football and fitness training.

Following the success of the 999 event at the Ricoh last year, a further event is being
planned for this year.

Future opportunities:

ITBTT has received £44,500 funding from the STP Suicide prevention monies. CWPT are in
the process of preparing back-fill staffing, to allow Alex Cotton to be seconded to ITBTT from
her substantive post for 2 days per week. Some funds will also be allocated to renewing
materials where necessary.

Alex is recommending to the ITBTT Board that the funding is also used for project
management support, to assist in the management of increased attendance at sporting
events etc. and to develop process and operational guide documents.

The aim of developing process and operational guides is to increase the resilience and

quality assurance of local ITBTT activity and to begin to develop a model for ITBTT to be
rolled-out regionally and beyond in time.

Page 12



Unite the Union have offered ITBTT an office in their new building. This gives a central
presence and space for dedicated work. It also increases opportunities for developing
contacts into places of male dominated employment.

The new address is:

It Takes Balls to Talk
Short St,
Coventry
CV12LSs

Alex Cotton has been awarded an MBE for her services to Mental Health and the project was
a finalist at the National NHS70 Parliamentary Awards on 4 July 2018.

These achievements have led to increased local press coverage and to radio interviews on
C&W, Free, and Heart FM.

6 MIND update
S-Word

In October 2017 schools across Coventry and Warwickshire screened a short film named, S-
Word. The film was created to raise awareness of suicide and break down the silence and
stigma around mental health.

Coventry and Warwickshire Mind worked with a local secondary school teacher who wrote
the script for S-Word to highlight the reality of suicide following the death of a relative who
took their own life. S-Word features extracts taken from the real accounts of suicide survivors
and the children and parents of those who have taken their life.

With the support of Coventry and Warwickshire Mind, S-Word was performed and filmed by a
production company, ready for screening in secondary schools across Coventry and
Warwickshire to mark World Mental Health Day on October 10th 2017.

CW Mind worked with 10 schools from the 9th — 13th October and reached over 1000 young
people, 100 parents and carers (who were encouraged to view the film before their child had
the opportunity) and 50 teaching staff. The organisation provided pre/post interventions,
signposting and support and also recorded outcomes to support learning and
positive/negative impact. Out of 247 young people surveyed, we learnt that; 87% felt that
they knew who to ask in school for help following the viewing of S-Word and 88% felt that
they knew how to help a friend in distress and where to go for help.

Across Coventry and Warwickshire, suicide kills more people than road traffic accidents and
because of this, CW Mind have prioritised suicide prevention as a priority topic in our
business strategic plan from 2016-2021. Over the coming months, we will be linking in with
Samaritans to gain support around best practise, re-connect with local suicide prevention
boards, create a teaching pack for educational staff to deliver the pre/post intervention and
work to roll out the model across all schools.

Training

MIND has delivered the following training in the last 12 months:

Page 13



Training Venues

Mental health awareness Brewers Ltd, Nandos, Coventry Building
Society, Coventry Cathdral, British Horse
society, RICS, London taxis, Family advice
centre, First Utility, Women’s refuge Centre,
Coventry City Council Homelessness team,
Whitefriars Housing

Understanding Stress- Building resilience Age UK — Series of workshops 2017/2018

Victim Support

Child Sexual exploitation Coventry City College

The Autistic Spectrum Leicester Schools
Understanding depression and anxiety SWAP Foster Care
Well-being at work University hospital Coventry

7. Suicide Prevention Funding update

Coventry and Warwickshire STP’s proposal for Suicide Prevention funding has been
successful for the amount of £351K per annum for two years 2018/9-2020 (year 2 subject to
a final ratification by NHSE). The proposal will focus on and address the following
aggregated priorities across the footprint:

Priority 1- Reducing the risk of suicide in key high risk groups

i. Communication campaigns- to expand It takes Balls to talk, a targeted suicide
prevention campaign for men. www.ittakesballstotalk.com. This is a successful
programme and campaign to raise awareness and reduce stigma aimed at men
through sporting venues through targeted suicide prevention training for individuals
working in sporting venues. The next phase of this programme is to scale up for wider
and bolder impact reaching additional community assets such as barbers and
workplace. The overall aim for the campaign will be to:

a. To raise awareness and understanding of suicide, and suicide prevention.

b. To encourage help-seeking via improved service information and signposting.

c. To target communications appropriately to individuals and groups at risk.

i.  Vulnerable Groups

a. To raise awareness among vulnerable groups such as students, veterans, those
experiencing bereavement, financial hardship or relationship breakdown, and
those with long term conditions and chronic pain.

b. Engage with community assets such as barbers, betting shops and pubs to raise
awareness and promote local services and support.

iii.  Workforce Development

Page 14



http://www.ittakesballstotalk.com/

a.

To extend and if appropriate deliver new evidence based mental health
awareness and suicide prevention training aimed at non-mental health
professionals including social care, primary care, A and E, Job centre and
Citizens Advice Bureau staff. Identify and develop a network of champions and
train the trainers within healthcare settings eg GP’s, acute hospital staff and in
specialist MH services to promote awareness, develop a compassionate culture
within services and to drive an ambition of zero suicides.

Map out existing services and support into a format that is easily useable by
clinicians to ensure a clear and consistent sign-posting by professionals.

Implement risk assessment and management tools in primary care and secondary
care to improve identification of risk and quality of onward sign-posting and
support, including improved identification and treatment of depression.

To build a coherent social prescribing offer that professionals and service users
are able to access easily and appropriately.

iv.  Crisis response

a.

To review and finalise a business case for safe havens/late night café pilot. There
are localised geographies within the Coventry and Warwickshire STP footprint
with higher suicide rates than the national average with the STP area (eg
Nuneaton and Bedworth and Warwick District ). These areas would be considered
for location of a safe haven/crisis café pilot.

To work in partnership with the third sector to develop the social prescribing offer
for men living in Coventry and Warwickshire who are socially isolated or
experiencing difficult life events.

Priority 4- Reducing the Impact of Suicide

Consider the needs of emergency responders and mental health workforce.

Scoping health and well-being needs of this workforce as a group vulnerable to
suicide.

Develop a more consistent offer across Coventry and Warwickshire for those
bereaved by suicide.

Priority 5- Improving data and evidence

Explore opportunities for real-time monitoring systems across Coventry and
Warwickshire, linking with the West Midlands Combined Authority. This will

improve the ability to monitor the impact of our suicide prevention plans and
provide timely insights into risks of contagion/ emerging suicide clusters.

Priority 6- Working together

Co-production with individuals impacted by suicide to develop campaign
resources aimed at the target group.

Strengthen system leadership provided by CWPT and Public Health leads across
the STP.

Page 15



e Strengthen links with Thrive West Midlands and the Combined Authority to
ensure a joined up approach to suicide prevention across the STP.

Page 16



One suicide//One too many

A Suicide Prevention
Strategy for Coventry
2016 - 2019

Page 17



One Suicide // One Too Many

1. Our Vision

Death by suicide is preventable. Each life lost is a tragedy. One suicide will always be one
too many.

Coventry City Council and its partners will oversee the establishment of robust networks and clearly defined
processes to reduce suicides in Coventry. Citizens will be in a stronger position to realise options for long term
wellbeing and improved quality of life. Suicidal behaviours will be minimised through the availability of timely
and effective support that is accessible to people in personal crisis. We propose a focused approach towards
zero suicides in our city, an approach which has been shown to effective in significantly reducing suicides.

2. Introduction

Across the UK it has been a clear priority in recent years to end the disparity between physical and mental health
with ‘no health without mental health’ becoming the mantra of reform for our health system?. A vital part of
this agenda is recognising suicide as a major public health problem. The majority of those who die by suicide are
not in contact with mental health services when they make the decision to end their life and so our strategy
must reach beyond specialist services and take account of the broad range of societal and individual factors that
lead to a person dying as a result of suicide. There is much more to be done across our whole community to
prevent these unnecessary deaths.

This strategy was developed by Coventry Public Health to translate national guidance into local action. We talked
to our local stakeholders in September 2015 (Appendix 2) then took the priorities they gave us and integrated
them with our research into the national and international experience of suicide prevention. We worked closely
with our colleagues in Warwickshire so that the plan we put forward provides a joint strategic vision. Our
objectives have been mapped to the same seven priority areas identified by the Warwickshire Suicide Prevention
Strategy 2016-20 and our actions will be shared wherever possible.

This strategy is one example of how we plan to work collaboratively with Warwickshire in the future. The NHS
Five Year Forward vision has tasked the health and care system to work across a Coventry and Warwickshire
footprint to produce a Sustainability and Transformation plan (STP)2. The STP necessitates our two areas work
in unison to provide the best possible services for our local populations. Many of our services already work
across the footprint and we hope that the closer relationship between Coventry and Warwickshire at the
strategic and commissioner level will yield positive results.

3. Our Aims

This strategy has three key aims to help us achieve our Zero Suicides vision:

1. Raise the level of understanding and awareness across Coventry of suicidal ideation, behaviours,
acts and the impact of suicidal acts across our communities.

2. To highlight key areas of service development and demonstrate ways forward to assist services in
supporting Coventry to be ‘Suicide Safer’.

3. Tosetout a clear action plan to mobilise all sectors to reduce suicidal behaviour across the city.

1 Department of Health, No Health without Mental Health: a cross-government mental health outcomes strategy for all ages, February
2011.

2 Further information available from: https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/futurenhs/deliver-forward-view/stp/ [Accessed 30/09/2016)].
At the time of writing, specifics of the STP for Coventry and Warwickshire had not been published.

Rage 18


https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/futurenhs/deliver-forward-view/stp/

We have worked closely with our colleagues in Warwickshire in developing this strategy to provide a joint
strategic focus for our services. With this in mind we will achieve our aims by focusing our efforts in line with
the same seven priority areas developed in the Warwickshire Suicide Prevention Strategy 2016-20:

Reducing the risk of suicide in key high risk groups.

Tailoring approaches to improve mental health in specific groups.

Reducing access to the means of suicide.

Reducing the impact of suicide.

Supporting the media in delivering sensitive approaches to suicide and suicidal behaviour.
Improving data and evidence.

Working together.

Nou,swneE

This strategy will outline the scale of the problem and why we believe suicide prevention is a vital component in
improving wellbeing in our city. The deliberate similarities with Warwickshire allow us to put forward an action
plan (see Appendix 1) that is coherent across the region whilst taking account of the particular challenges faced
within Coventry’s population.

4. Facts and Figures: The Bigger Picture
4.1 The United Kingdom

It is important to know the scale of an issue before we try to tackle it. Suicide has consistently been the leading
cause of death for adults under the age of 50.3 The Office of National Statistics (ONS) composes annual reports
on death by suicide that demonstrate why suicide prevention needs to be a priority on a national and local level.
The figures from the latest report are summarised below.*

In 2014, a total of 6,122 suicides of people aged 10 and over were registered in the UK, 120 fewer than in 2013.
Historically, a generally downward trend in suicide rates was observed between 1981 and 2007, with a decrease
from 14.7 to 10.0 deaths per 100,000 population (see Figure 1). Sadly, coinciding with the global economic
downturn, suicide rates began to increase in 2008 — peaking at 11.1 deaths per 100,000 in 2013, before dropping
slightly in 2014 to 10.8 deaths per 100,000.

Of the total number of suicides registered in 2014 in the UK, 76% were male and 24% were female. Although
suicide rates fell significantly for both sexes between 1981 and 2007, the fall was more pronounced among
women. Consequently, the proportion of male to female suicides has increased since 1981 when 63% were male
and 37% were female.

The male suicide rate increased significantly between 2007 and 2013. It peaked at 17.8 deaths per 100,000
population in 2013, before falling to 16.8 deaths per 100,000 in 2014. In the same year as male suicides fell,
2013-14 saw UK female suicide increase by 8.3%. However, since 2007, the female suicide rate has remained
relatively constant and throughout the whole time period covered by the data, female rates of suicide have
been consistently lower than in males, currently standing at 5.2 deaths per 100,000 in 2014.>

3 ONS Digital, What are the top causes of death by age and gender?, February 2015. Available from: http://visual.ons.gov.uk/what-are-the-
top-causes-of-death-by-age-and-gender/ [Accessed 22/09/2016]

4Statistics and figures taken from Office of National Statistics, Suicide in the United Kingdom: 2014 registrations. Available from:
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/2014r
egistrations [Accessed 20/09/2016]

5 Suicide data is based on coroners’ records — the inquest causes a delay between the death occurring and the date the death is registered;
‘Difficult to code’ coroners’ verdicts can skew data e.g. an area with a high proportion of narrative verdicts may falsely appear to have a
lower suicide rate because of difficulties in coding those verdicts as suicide.

Page 19


http://visual.ons.gov.uk/what-are-the-top-causes-of-death-by-age-and-gender/
http://visual.ons.gov.uk/what-are-the-top-causes-of-death-by-age-and-gender/
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/2014registrations
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/2014registrations

Figure 1: Age-standardised suicide rates by sex, deaths registered between 1981 and 2014
UK

Rate per 100,000 population

25 4
= = =Personsg
— Males
- f\/\/\ Ferales
e— '_ﬂ'“"»_____
—\H‘/—\E\
_‘"---mb/——.__/_/\
15 ™ = - -
== Y I .
- . == -
- ~ ..o P me.
10 ==
=3
0

1981 1984 1887 1990 1993 1856 1899 2002 2005 2008 2011 2014

Source: Office for National Statistics, National Records of Scotland, Northern Ireland Statistics and
Research Agency

4.2 England

There were 4,882 suicides among people aged 10 and over registered in England in 2014, 155 more than 2013
(a 3% increase). This increase appears to have been driven by an increase in the number of female suicides, with
14% more suicides in females in England in 2014 than in 2013. In contrast, male suicide rates have remained
stable.

The increase in the suicide rate for all persons in England in 2014 contrasts with the rest of the UK as suicide
rates fell in Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland in the same period. Overall, the age-standardised suicide rate
increased slightly, from 10.1 deaths per 100,000 population in 2013 to 10.3 in 2014, equal to the previous
highest suicide rate in recent times recorded in 2004.

Research by the Samaritans provides greater detail on the age of those who die by suicide. Their 2016 report
uncovers a peak in rates for people aged 45-54 and again at age 80-85 years®. As can be seen from the figure
below, whilst this true for both sexes, it is a trend much more pronounced for men:

6 Elizabeth Scowcroft (Samaritans), Suicide Statistics Report 2016, May 2016. Available from: http://www.samaritans.org/about-us/our-
research/facts-and-figures-about-suicide [Accessed 21/09/2016]

Rage 20


http://www.samaritans.org/about-us/our-research/facts-and-figures-about-suicide
http://www.samaritans.org/about-us/our-research/facts-and-figures-about-suicide

Figure 2: Suicide rates in England by age group’
Graph 3: Suicide rates in England by age group, 2013 Il Male @ Female A Overall
30—

25—

(]
=]
|

,_.
w
|

Rate per 100,000
[
=
|

5

0 ]
o = o = L] = L] =t o =t L=4] = L] = =1 +
%6 & @ o@m F ¥ W o0 8w © > R @ 3 9
g N 2 W 2 W g w2 @ 9o m g 0 L
i o~ o o m = (T3] [y ] [¥-] P~ [ o L=

Age group (years)

Source: Samaritans (Elizabeth Scowcroft), Suicide Statistics Report 2015

This demonstrates that middle age is a high risk time for suicide in both men and women, but that coupled with
a greater number of men dying by suicide overall leads us to the conclusion that men in mid-life are the group
at highest risk.

5. Facts and Figures: The Local Picture

The national figures produced by the ONS look at suicides in 3 year aggregates. This is broken down into locality
specific data. From this we can see that Coventry had 83 deaths by suicide in the 2012-14 period, which equates
to an age-standardised rate of 10.1 per 100,000 population. This continues a downward trend from high of 103
deaths in 2009-11.8 More recent figures that suggests this downward trend may be continuing with 18 deaths
receiving a verdict of suicide following coroner’s inquest in 2015 — although this number should be viewed with
caution as it is likely to be an under-estimate given that a proportion of suicides do not receive this verdict at
inquest.®

The table below shows the number of people who died by suicide in Coventry each year between 2005 and
2014; 300 lives were lost prematurely during this time period.

Number of deaths by suicide in Coventry over a 10 year period®

36 26 22 30 41 27 35 27 28 28

Source: Office of National Statistics, Suicide Registrations by Local Authority (February 2016)

Public Health England publishes data that allows us to compare Coventry with both national and regional rates.
The table below (Figure 3) shows that, overall, Coventry does not have statistically significant differences in

7 Figure taken from Elizabeth Scowcroft (Samaritans), Suicide Statistics Report 2015, March 2015. Although not the most recent report,
there was no change in the age distribution apparent in the updated 2016 report.

8 ONS, Table 2: Suicide Registrations by Local Authority, February 2016. Available from:
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/datasets/suicidesbylocalauthority [Accessed
23/09/2016] N.B. 2014 is the most recent data available from the ONS.

9 Gunnell D et al, A Multicentre Programme of clinical and public health research in support of the National Suicide Prevention Strategy for
England; Chapter 3 The influence of changes in coroners’ practices on the validity of national suicide rates in England, October 2013,
Programme Grants for Applied Research Vol1(1).

Page 21


http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/datasets/suicidesbylocalauthority

suicide rates to the West Midlands or England. We appear to follow the national trend which puts those in
middle age, and particularly men in this stage of life, at the greatest risk of death by suicide.'®

Figure 3: Public Health England Suicide Profile for Coventry

Compared with benchmark @ Lower @ Similar © Higher
Eienchrmark Yalue

Liowwest 25th Percentile 75th Percentile Highest
Coventry Region England England
Indicator Period

Count Value Value Value Lowest Range Highest
Suicide age-standardised rate: per 100,000 (3
year avorage) (Persons) 2012-14 82 101 102 100 51 (@ | 176
Suicide age-standardised rate: per 100,000 (3
vear average) (Male) LI 201214 68 168 165 158 8.1 o) 28.3
?;;C[Igseargzgt?;:;r:gﬁjjmie per 100,000 (3 2012 -14 15 = 42 45 - Insufficient number of values for a spine chart -
Years of life lost due to suicide,
agmdardised rate 15-74 years: per 10,000 2012 - 14 79 315 330 319 107 @ | 62.6
population (3 year average) (Persons) 0
Years of life lost due to suicide,
atmdardised rate 15-74 years: per 10,000 2012 - 14 64 515 534 502 164 n 101.6
population (3 year average) (Male) @
Years of life lost due to suicide,
atgndardised rate 15-74 years: per 10,000 2012-14 15 109 126 137 00 @) | | 26.2
population (3 year average) (Female) O
Suicide crude rate 15-34 years: per 100,000 (5
year average) (Maie) B 2010 - 14 24 89 123 123 41 @ || 335
Suicide crude rate 15-34 years: per 100,000 (5 N
year average) (Female) O 2010-14 - 3.0 30 34 29 _ a7
Suicide crude rate 35-64 years: per 100,000 (5
vear average) (Male) Ol 2010 - 14 71 255 205 205 79 | e 338
Suicide crude rate 35-64 years: per 100,000 (5 . _
year average) (Female) B 2010-14 - 5.7 57 59 49 7.1
Suicide crude rate 65+ years: per 100,000 (5
vear average) (Male) O 2010- 14 18 174 131 124 21 [ | e 24.5
Suicide crude rate 65+ years: per 100,000 (5 .
year average) (Female) B 2010-14 - 42 42 43 35 am 52

Source: Public Health England, Suicide Prevention Profile

The latest publication from the National Confidential Inquiry has stratified their data across the Coventry and
Warwickshire STP footprint — worryingly, this has shown the footprint’s suicide rate to be in the upper quintile
of English footprints.!! This gives a different picture to the PHE data, suggesting that our population is more
prone to suicide and should serve to emphasise the need to take co-ordinated action across the region.

Reducing suicide requires understanding the underlying causes that pre-dispose to suicidal action. Taking into
account the wider determinants that place people at higher risk of suicide, we know that Coventry has high
levels of deprivation and that this effects the number of people in our population at higher risk of suicide. Using
the Public Health England fingertips data tool referenced above, compared to national figures Coventry has
higher rates of homelessness, long term unemployment, children currently in care and consequently high
numbers of care leavers in the city. Rates of hospital admissions related to alcohol and self-harm are higher than
those for other areas in the West Midlands and nationally. These are areas we can work to understand and
improve on, to make a real difference to the risk of suicide within the Coventry population.

The Coventry Mental Well-being and Mental Health Assets and Needs Assessment, completed in 2015,
recognises that increasing health inequalities have a detrimental effect on mental health and well-being. There
is evidence that suicide risk in men has a linear relationship with socio-economic position, with those who have
stable employment, higher educational attainment and higher economic achievement at lowest risk.2? It is

10 public Health England, Public Health England Suicide Profile for Coventry [Accessed 21/09/2016]

1 University of Manchester, The National Confidential Inquiry into Suicide and Homicide by People with Mental lliness. Making Mental
Health Care Safer: Annual Report and 20 year Review: England, Northern Ireland, Scotland and Wales, October 2016. The data used to
calculate these rates is not age standardised and includes deaths by those aged 10-14 which are excluded from ONS figures. Furthermore
the two differ in that this report uses date of death rather than the date death is registered, as such they include estimated figures in
2013/14 to account for those inquests which have yet to be included.

12 Lorant V et al, Socio-economic inequalities in suicide: a European comparative study, British Journal of Psychiatry (June 2005) 187 (1) 49-
54.

Rage 22


http://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental-health/profile/suicide/data#page/0/gid/1938132828/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/102/are/E08000026

interesting to note that this gradient does not clearly occur in all countries, and that the correlation is not as
strong for female suicides. Understanding the role of these factors is vital; suicide prevention needs to be an
integral part of the wider public mental health and wellbeing agenda to reduce suicidal behaviour across all
groups.

The good news is that Coventry has some positives to build on - the Public Health data suggests that mental
wellbeing in the city is higher than the national average, with fewer people reporting high anxiety or low
happiness scores.’®> We want Coventry to build on this and become a city that promotes mental wellbeing and
emotional resilience for all.

6. What factors do we need to consider?
6.1 Gender and Suicide

As we have seen above, men are more likely to die by suicide - three quarters of deaths by suicide in England
are men, with those in middle age at particular risk. This is typically a hard to reach group and it is vital that our
strategy involves services that men are both able and willing to access.

However, it would be wrong to say that suicide is a male problem; whilst less likely to die by suicide, more
women than men attempt to take their own lives each year. This gender paradox was demonstrated in the 2007
household survey of adult psychiatric morbidity which highlighted: 4

“Women are more likely to experience suicidal thoughts - 19% of women had considered taking their own life.
For men the figure was 14%. And women aren’t simply more likely to think about suicide — they are also more
likely to act on the idea. The survey found that 7% of women and 4% of men had attempted suicide at some
point in their lives.”

This incidence of suicidal ideation highlights the imperative that we take a holistic, person-centred approach to
suicide prevention. Whilst identifying and protecting vulnerable groups is important, if our focus is only on these
groups we will miss opportunities to save many others at risk of death by suicide.

6.2 Other Risk Factors

Many people who take their own life are known, or have been known, to mental health services, and as such
the quality of their care is a vital aspect of any strategy to reduce suicide. The relationship between self-harm
and suicide is complicated and far beyond the scope of this strategy to investigate in full, but it is know that
people who self-harm have a significantly increased risk of suicide, particularly in the 12 months following initial
presentation.® It is crucial to recognise that the right support at the right time for those who present with mental
health problems or self-harm could make all the difference to that individual. However, it cannot be forgotten
that figures suggest that only 28% of people were in contact with mental health services in the year leading up
to their death.1®

A number of other factors increase the likelihood of someone taking their own life. As well as younger men and
those with a history of mental health problems or self-harm, the 2012 National Suicide Prevention Strategy
identifies those in contact with the criminal justice system and specific occupational groups such as doctors,
nurses, vets, farmers and agricultural workers as being at higher risk. We know that people who have adverse
childhood experiences, or who have themselves been bereaved by suicide are also at increased risk.

Certain groups have specific mental health needs that in turn require specific service responses. The 2012
national strategy suggests nine groups that represent particular points of concern:

13 Public Health England, Fingertips Data tool ‘Related Risk Factors’ based on Annual Population Survey published by the ONS, Available
from: http://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental-
health/profile/suicide/data#tpage/1/gid/1938132831/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/102/are/E08000026/iid/22303/age/164/sex/4 [Accessed
21/09/2016]

14 Adult psychiatric morbidity in England: Results of a household survey, (2007), The NHS Information Centre For Health and Social Care.
15 Cooper J, Kapur N, Webb R et al. (2005) Suicide after deliberate self-harm: a 4-year cohort study. American Journal of Psychiatry 162:
297-303

6 The National Confidential Inquiry into Suicide and Homicide by People with Mental lliness, Annual Report 2015: England, Northern
Ireland, Scotland and Wales, July 2015, University of Manchester.

Page 23


http://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental-health/profile/suicide/data#page/1/gid/1938132831/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/102/are/E08000026/iid/22303/age/164/sex/4
http://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental-health/profile/suicide/data#page/1/gid/1938132831/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/102/are/E08000026/iid/22303/age/164/sex/4

1. Children and young people — especially those currently in the care system, recent care leavers and
those in contact with the criminal justice system.

Survivors of domestic and sexual abuse

Veterans

People with long term physical health conditions

People with untreated depression

People who misuse drugs and alcohol

Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT) people

Black, Asian and other minority ethnic groups and Asylum Seekers

Those who are especially vulnerable due to socioeconomic conditions.

WO NV R WDN

Some of these groups featured in the Warwickshire suicide audit, for example the coroner highlighted in one
case that provision of high quality mental health care for military veterans needed to be addressed. We know
from Coventry’s demographics that a higher than average proportion of our population fits into one or more of
these vulnerable groups. A particular challenge will be addressing suicide in our migrant and refugee
communities, where we will need to address different cultural understandings of suicidal behaviour and mental
ill health. This means it is vital that our strategy reaches beyond health services and has a truly multi-sector
approach. We must address the barriers faced by these groups that prevent them from seeking and accessing
help.

6.3 The Wider Determinants of Health

Suicide is about crisis, a sense of hopelessness and often a lack of purpose. When wider socioeconomic factors
bring about negative circumstances, these added pressures, often outside of the control of the individual, can
increase the likelihood of suicidal ideation and behaviours. We have seen above that these wider determinants
have a significant impact on the likelihood of someone taking their own life. We must fully consider the wider
negative socioeconomic determinants and how they can be addressed when developing and implementing our
plan for suicide prevention.

6.4 Missed Opportunities

Effective suicide prevention across the public sector is crucial to saving lives. The National Confidential Inquiry
into Suicide and Homicide by People with Mental lliness (2014) highlighted that increased regularity in
attendance at GP practices was evident for many people who took their own lives'’. As the inquiry stated:

“Suicide risk increased with increasing number of GP consultations, particularly in the 2 to 3 months prior
to suicide. In those who attended more than 24 times, risk was increased 12-fold.”

Every contact can be seen as an opportunity to change the outcome for a person considering suicide. This ethos
stretches across primary and secondary care services and wider still in respect of culture, attitude, responses
and practice regarding suicide prevention. There is good evidence that investing in GP suicide prevention training
makes real differences to reduce the incidence of suicide.

As previously discussed, suicidal behaviour is influenced by a vast number of factors and people can come into
contact with a wide variety of agencies. Although there was a correlation between suicide and frequent
attenders to GP services, the same inquiry evidenced that 37% of the people who had died by suicide had not
seen their GP at all in the previous year. The burden cannot solely be placed on health services to recognise
warning signs of suicidal ideation and signpost people to help.

Prison suicides are at the rate of 0.7 per 1,000 and there is a considerable rise in apparent suicides within two
days of release from police custody. Furthermore, in 2014 there were 84 self-inflicted deaths in prisons in
England and Wales compared to 75 in 2013. Suicide is not just an issue for health services, it must be addressed
across the board if we are to see real differences to people’s lives.

17 Suicide in primary care in England: 2002-2011. National Confidential Inquiry into Suicide and Homicide by People with
Mental lliness (NCISH). Manchester: University of Manchester 2014.

Rage 24



6.5 Far-reaching Consequences

Suicide is a major social and public health issue. The impact of suicide is devastating and far reaching, affecting
not just the individual and those that knew them, but the community as a whole. It carries a financial burden for
the local economy and contributes to worsening inequalities. Work done in support of the Scottish suicide
prevention strategy looked at the overall cost of suicide — when taking into account direct, indirect and intangible
costs arising from the premature loss of life and the impact it has on those who survive them, each life lost
carries a potential cost of £1.29-1.67million.'8 Based on the average number of deaths from suicide in Coventry
this equates to an annual loss of at least £38.7million.

For family and friends, losing a loved one to suicide can be devastating; they are up to three times more at risk
of taking their own lives and can experience severe effects on their health, quality of life, ability to function well
at work and in their personal lives. This strategy considers the effect of suicide on people of all demographics in
recognition of the fact that one suicide has a much wider impact on their family and community.

7. Our Approach

A half day stakeholder event to drive forward plans for a Coventry City Council Suicide Prevention Strategy was
undertaken in September 2015. This event highlighted key areas where it was felt there was an opportunity for
change and positive development in respect of suicide prevention. This is outlined in Appendix 2 and reflected
within our approach outlined below. Our strategy brings together these local priorities with the national and
Warwickshire strategies to put forward an action plan reflecting our Zero Suicides vision.

7.1 National Strategies
In 2012 the government published Preventing Suicide in England: A Cross Government Outcomes Strategy
to Save Lives'®. The strategy identifies six key areas for action:

Reduce the risk of suicide in key high-risk groups

Tailor approaches to improve mental health in specific groups

Reduce access to the means of suicide

Provide better information and support to those bereaved or affected by suicide
Support the media in delivering sensitive approaches to suicide and suicidal behaviour
Support research, data collection and monitoring.

ok wNRE

Following on from this guidance, an All-Party Parliamentary Group (APPG) was tasked with monitoring local
authority responses. Their latest report in 2014 recommended that there are three elements vital to
successful implementation of the national strategy?°:

3]

Undertaking a ‘suicide audit’ to understand local risk factors for suicide.

b. Developing a suicide prevention action plan.

Establishing a multi-agency suicide prevention group to implement the plan throughout the
local community.

The advice of these two national documents, as well as the experiences of other local authorities and
international developments in suicide prevention have been taken into account in the development of our
Coventry strategy.

18 Knapp M, McDaid D, Parsonage M. Mental Health Promotion and mental illness prevention: the economic case; 2.11 Population-level
Suicide Awareness Training and Intervention, January 2011, Department of Health. This work was and update to 2009 prices from the
previous economic work completed in Platt S, McLean J, McCollam A et al, Evaluation of the First Phase of Choose Life: the National
Strategy and Action Plan to Prevent Suicide in Scotland, 2006. Edinburgh: Scottish Executive.

19 Department of Health, Preventing Suicide in England: A Cross Government Outcomes Strategy to Save Lives, September 2012. Available
from: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/suicide-prevention-strategy-for-england [Accessed 16/09/2016]

20 All-Party Parliamentary Group (APPG) on Suicide and Self-Harm prevention, Inquiry into Local Suicide Prevention Plans in England,
January 2015.

Page 25


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/suicide-prevention-strategy-for-england

7.2 Coventry Stakeholder Event

Our stakeholder event in September 2015 looked at current gaps in provision of services for suicide prevention,
the features of an ‘excellent’ community based suicide prevention programme and asked stakeholders to
identify key priority areas. (Appendix 2). From this it was clear that our suicide prevention strategy needed to
be rooted in our community with a focus on education and training. It also emphasised the importance of having
all agencies working with a co-ordinated approach.

In the course of developing this strategy, as well as considering national guidance, research was conducted into
strategies in place elsewhere, both in and outside of the UK, to reduce suicides. Of particular interest was the
work carried out by LivingWorks to adapt the Canadian ‘suicide-safer communities’ model into a framework for
action that can be applied internationally?’. Their work reflected the priorities highlighted by our stakeholder
group and provided a focus on which actions provide the greatest impact.

Some significant aspects of the LivingWorks model have been incorporated into our strategy. Firstly, their model
relies on gatekeepers - peers or professionals trained in recognising and responding to potential suicidal
behaviour. This focus on training and suicide awareness is clear priority for our Coventry stakeholders and our
colleagues in Warwickshire, who have commissioned suicide awareness training for all GPs in their area.

Secondly, their model emphasises the importance of sustainable, whole community approaches and multi-
agency steering groups. This is an area where we will collaborate with Warwickshire to ensure congruity across
the Coventry and Warwickshire region. We are acutely aware that improving mental wellbeing generally across
the whole population is key protective feature against suicide and we plan to follow Warwickshire’s lead in
working to achieve this. We also recognise that working collaboratively with multiple partners and local
communities will help embed our strategy to promote long lasting positive change.

The other aspects of the ‘suicide-safer communities’” model (e.g. services for those bereaved by suicide,
improved data collection and evaluation, accessible mental health support and intervention services) are explicit
in the national strategies and thus are reflected in our seven ‘Warwickshire and Coventry Priorities’.

7.3 Warwickshire and Coventry Suicide Prevention Strategy Priorities

‘Joined up provision’ was a clear priority from our stakeholder event and many of our providers will work
across both Coventry and Warwickshire. This is particularly key in the current climate with joint action
occurring through the NHS-led Sustainability and Transformation plan (STP). We have worked closely with
our colleagues in Warwickshire to ensure that this strategy mirrors the Warwickshire Suicide Prevention
Strategy 2016-20.

Seven key priority areas were developed by Warwickshire Public Health with reference to the national
strategies. These key priorities will provide the framework for our action plan. Below is an explanation of
the seven key areas and what actions they entail within both the Coventry and Warwickshire areas:

1) Reducing the risk of suicide in key high risk groups
2) Tailor approaches to improve mental health in specific groups
3) Reduce access to the means of suicide

4) Reducing the impact of suicide

5) Supporting the media in delivering sensitive approaches to suicide and suicidal behaviour

6) Improving data and evidence

21 LivingWorks, Suicide-safer Communities, Available from: https://www.livingworks.net/community/suicide-safer-communities/
[Accessed 16/09/2016]

Rage 26


https://www.livingworks.net/community/suicide-safer-communities/

11

7) Working together

This strategy for Coventry will utilise these same seven priority areas and share actions where appropriate.
An initial action plan based around these priorities is available in Appendix 1. Although the ultimate aim is
to establish a suicide prevention group spanning Coventry and Warwickshire, it is recognised that achieving
this level of collaboration takes time to establish. Therefore, in the first instance it is proposed to set up a
Task and Finish Group of interested local partners in Coventry to convene in early 2017 so that action
against suicide is not delayed. This group will include representatives from local mental health
commissioners, providers and voluntary sector agencies. Through this group, it is envisaged that there will
be close collaboration with wider local authority departments, universities and business leaders to broaden
our reach beyond those already known to health services.

7.4 Our Potential Partners

In ‘Preventing Suicide: A global imperative’ the World Health Organization call for a systematic
response to suicide and making prevention a multi-sector priority involving not only health care but
education, employment, social welfare, the judiciary and others.?? The factors leading to someone
taking their own life are complex but they are amenable to change. This strategy works on the
assumption that every suicide is preventable provided that prevention measures address this
complexity.

No single organisation is able to directly influence all factors - services, communities, individuals and
society as a whole work together to help prevent suicides. Below are examples of areas we need to
engage in our work towards Zero Suicides:

Arena for Action Examples of groups to involve

Wider Community Community and voluntary sector organisations, sports
clubs, educational establishments, faith groups, retail
organisations, housing trusts, prisons and probation
services, workplaces, employment support

Health and Well Being Board Local Authorities, Public Health, CCG, Police, Fire,
Voluntary Sector etc.

Primary Care GP Practices, Community Health Trusts,
IAPT providers

Secondary Care Mental Health Trusts, A&E Departments,

CAMHs Teams, Hospitals, Ambulance Trusts

8. Accountability and Governance

From April 2013 the co-ordination of suicide reduction became a local authority responsibility, with
guidance provided by Health & Wellbeing Boards, as set out in the government’s 2012 national
strategy for suicide reduction “Preventing suicide in England - A cross government outcomes strategy
to save lives”. The Task and Finish Group leading the work arising from this strategy will provide
reports to Coventry Health and Wellbeing board so that progress can be monitored.

9. How will we know when we have achieved our vision?

We will have achieved our overarching vision when we can demonstrate through an action plan that
suicides in Coventry have reduced. We will strive to realise zero suicides in Coventry — some may say
itis an overly ambitious aim but it is one that will always teach us lessons about where we can improve.

22 World Health Organization (WHO), Preventing Suicide: A Global Imperative, 2014. Available from:
http://www.who.int/mental_health/suicide-prevention/world report 2014/en/ [Accessed 23/09/2016]

Page 27


http://www.who.int/mental_health/suicide-prevention/world_report_2014/en/

The action plan will be a practical tool for implementation and is intended to be updated regularly to
reflect changing needs and demands.

10. Acknowledgements

This document has been produced with significant supporting material from Warwickshire Suicide
Prevention Strategy 2016-20 produced by the Warwickshire Public Mental Health and Wellbeing
Team, Warwickshire County Council. We must credit them for developing the seven priority areas on
which our strategy relies.

Special thanks to Terry Rigby for his significant contribution in the development of this strategy and
to Dr Charlotte Gath (Consultant in Public Health, Warwickshire County Council) for her support.

Rage 28



DRAFT Action Plan
The following plan incorporates actions required to meet the nine pillars of a ‘Suicide Safer Community’ and
aligns them to the priority areas produced by Warwickshire. It presents a clear, coherent approach to be applied
across Coventry to reflect our vision of Zero Suicides. In the first instance, the Task and Finish Group will co-
ordinate these actions and provide oversight between reports to Health and Wellbeing Board. It is expected that
a more specific action plan will arise when this group convenes in early 2017.

Appendix 1

. . . Anticipated
Objective Actions Lead Timescale | Target Group P
Outcome
Support and
commission
accessible suicide
intervention Vulnerable
services e.g. groups, Improved clinical
improve crisis CCG population at intervention to
response, ensure risk of mental ill | reduce suicide rates
services are health
responsive and
offer appropriate
support
Support and Reduce the risk of
commission suicide in the
roactive suicide opulation;
P : General p ——
prevention . Improve
o population/com N
activities e.g. . : ) communication
. CCG/Public munity services .
training of . . around the issue of
) Health involved in -
community PN suicide so that
Reducing the risk | gatekeepers, P . 8 people feel safe to
. . . . suicide
of suicide in key | suicide awareness seek help and that
high risk groups training for help is clearly
frontline staff signposted
Identify
opportunities for
establishing robust Improve mental
referral and support Vulnerable health services to
systems with the groups, allow early
necessary training CCG population at intervention to
realised e.g. good risk of mental ill | prevent suicide in
links with substance health those with mental
misuse services, GP health issues.
suicide prevention
training.
Review and
improve discharge
P . & Vulnerable people
planning processes feel suoported
for vulnerable CCG/Acute Vulnerable PP
: when they are
people e.g. people and Mental groups at higher

with known mental
health problems,
people with chronic
illnesses

Health Trusts

risk of suicide

stepped down from
secondary/tertiary
services.

13

Page 29




Build on the success
of the It Takes Balls
to Talk campaign by

It Takes Balls

Reduce stigma
surrounding
suicide; increase

health/crisis
services and
families

continuing to General .
< . to Talk Ongoing : help seeking
target the suicide ) population, ) :
Steering . behaviour with
awareness message particularly men
. Group regards to mental
at sporting events .
. and emotional
in the Coventry and health
Warwickshire area '
Within Public
Health contracts
ensure the
promotion of
mental health and
o General Improve overall
Al E S opulation/ ublic mental
e.g. 0-19 services to | Public Health pop 2 .
; ) vulnerable wellbeing to reduce
o increase emotional i .
Tailoring i . groups the risk of suicide
resilience in young
approaches to
. people, reduce
improve mental .
health in specific stigma around
rOUDS P mental distress and
group suicide
Ensure active
engagement with
the Coventry and Those with a Reduce rates of
Warwickshire Oneoin known mental suicide amongst
Mental Health Care | CCG going health problem | those known to
Crisis Concordat to who could be at | mental health
drive forward the risk from suicide | services
aim of reducing
suicides
Increase awareness
of overdose of .
) . CCG Vulnerable Reduce fatal suicide
prescribed opiates
groups attempts
. amongst GPs and
Reducing access : .
hospital prescribers
to the means of -
. Work with network
suicide . .
rail around reducing
railway suicide with . Ongoing Vulnerable Reduce fatal suicide
. Samaritans
a particular focus groups attempts
on high risk
locations.
Support accessible
suicide
bereavement
services e VeI
Reducing the ) & sector :
. - improve People affected | Reduce the impact
impact of suicide S bereavement . .
communication by suicide of suicide
support
between mental .
providers

Rage 30




Work in conjunction
with existing
services to develop

Reduce the impact

support for those Individuals -
of suicide;
exposed to, Task and affected/ )
L Standardise
bereaved by or Finish Group bereaved by
. . approach to
affected by suicide suicide )
supporting those
] QU N G bereaved by suicide
use of the 'Help is y
at Hand' booklet
developed by PHE
Support local
initiatives through .
- Increase in help
existing Comms teams ) .
L . General seeking behaviour;
communications (AT Population/ reduce stigma
networks to Health/Local Ongoing P g‘
. o ) Vulnerable around talking
increase suicide Authority/ . .
populations about suicidal
Supporting the awareness e.g. It CCe) feelings
pp. . - Takes Balls to Talk 8
media in T
liveri
del .e.rlng Participate in World
sensitive - :

Suicide Prevention : ,
approaches to Communicate with
. Day; as well as )
suicide and ublicising events Comms teams the general public

suicidal behaviour Eend an ainual ’ (Public that suicide
i Health/CCC), 10th Sept General prevention is a
reminder to local ) S
Voluntary (annually) Population priority in Coventry;
press about the
. sector show support for
importance of ; . )

. agencies those in the city
adhering to affected by suicide
Samaritans Media y
Guidance
Gather background
?nf(.)rmatmn - Lo ey, Provide knowledge
incidence/prevalenc base for

o other members | . )

e of suicide in ) October interventions and
Public Health of the key L
Coventry, 2016 . baseline figures to
partnership
awareness of . measure
. agencies .
current strategies in improvement
place
Identify any
Improving Data Undertake a Board vulnerable groups
and Evidence 'Suicide Audit' of Public Health End of 2016 | overseeing or means of suicide
coroner's records Suicide Strategy | that are a particular
risk in Coventry
Follow national
licati
pf:v:;aetf\zzlence AIGNIFES Coventry is in line
?or consultations Mental Health with natTonaI
Public Health Ongoing Trust, Board

where appropriate
and discuss
implementation of
new

Overseeing
Suicide Strategy

strategies on
suicide prevention

15

Page 31




recommendations
as appropriate

Working Together

Identify a multi-
sector committee
to oversee
implementation of

Stakeholders,

Clear governance
structure and

. . Public Health ASAP key partnership | leadership to co-
suicide prevention . . .
agencies ordinate suicide
strategy and )
reduction efforts
spearhead future
initiatives.
Identify
organisations Voluntary
linking in with the sector, national Co-ordinated
Task & Finish Group | Task and January transport messages around
to support Finish Group 2017 agencies, suicide prevention
implementation coroner’s office | across all sectors
and hold regular etc.
engagement events
Further develop
long term
g - General
opportunities for .
) population
effective
. - whose
suicide/suicidal .
. circumstances Reduce the chances
behaviour . .
o increase the of reaching the
reduction in the Task and . . Lo
. likelihood of crisis point' which
sectors of Finish Group . :
education. criminal suicidal we know increases
o ’ behaviour the risk of suicide
justice,
regardless of
employment, .
: ) . pre-existent
housing, university, ;
) mental illness
and public
transport
Agree strategy and Vulnerable
action plan Health and groups, Planned actions are
—_ . December . . L
priorities and Well Being 5016 population at achievable within
monitor delivery of | Board risk of mentalill | given timescales

plan

health

Rage 32




Appendix 2

Suicide Prevention:

Overview of the stakeholder event to drive forward plans for a
Coventry City Council Suicide Prevention Strategy // 229 Sept 2015

Hosted by Voluntary Action coventry

Forward ))
Developed and Facilitated by for life

17 Page 33



A Brief Background

In England, one person dies every two hours as a result of suicide. When someone takes their own
life, the effect on their family and friends is devastating. Many others involved in providing support
and care will feel the impact.

Figures released by the Office for National Statistics (ONS) in February 2015 showed that suicides in the
UK had rose by four per cent in 2013,

In 2013, 6233 suicides were registered in the UK; a rate of 11.9 per 100,000 (19 per 100,000 for men
and 5.1 per 100,000 for women).

The male suicide rate is the highest since 2001, and suicides among middle aged men aged 45-59 are
at 25.1 per 100,000 which is the highest rate for this group since 1981.

Preventing suicide in England: A cross-government outcomes strategy to save lives (2012) stated

“THERE ARE DIRECT LINKS BETWEEN MENTAL ILL HEALTH AND SOCIAL FACTORS SUCH AS UNEMPLOYMENT AND
DEBT. BOTH ARE RISK FACTORS FOR SUICIDE. PREVIOUS PERIODS OF HIGH UNEMPLOYMENT AND/OR SEVERE
ECONOMIC PROBLEMS HAVE BEEN ACCOMPANIED BY INCREASED INCIDENCE OF MENTAL ILL HEALTH AND HIGHER
SUICIDE RATES.”

A recent British Medical Journal Study (published August 2012) showed clear evidence linking the
recent increase in suicides in England with the financial crisis that began in 2008 for both men and
women.

English regions with the largest rises in unemployment have had the largest increases in suicides,
particularly among men. Recent figures for the West Midlands showed that suicide rates have
increased by 24 per cent, with 2007 data recording 245 deaths by suicide/undetermined deaths and
the 2010 data showing the number of recorded deaths being recorded as 450.

The draft Coventry Mental Well-being and Mental Health Assets and Needs Assessment recognises
that increasing health inequalities are having a detrimental effect on the mental health and well-being
of the most vulnerable communities and there is a need to develop intelligence and establish a clear
framework for ensuring that suicide prevention is realised strategically as an integral part of the wider
public mental health and wellbeing agenda.

ONS data 2011-13 highlights that although not statistically significant, suicide in Coventry was 10.0
deaths per 100,000 population, which was higher than both the regional and national estimates (8.3
and 8.8 deaths per 100,000 respectively).

It is recognised by Coventry City Council that to have a real impact on suicide rates across Coventry, there

is a need for the development of a City Wide Suicide Prevention Strategy that brings together a range of
sectors and service providers across Health and Social Care and beyond.

The Suicide Prevention Stakeholder Event on the 22" September 2015 brought together a range of
organisations from across the city with the following intended outcomes:

Rage 34


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/suicide-prevention-strategy-launched
http://www.bmj.com/content/345/bmj.e5142

Awareness of the issue of suicide

The start of a community approach to suicide prevention

The development of a multi-agency steering group to inform a Coventry wide strategy
Knowledge of services, gaps, needs.

Access to potential future learning opportunities

\ A A A A 4

The Presentation

Based on the outcomes outlined above — An overview of suicide (internationally, nationally and locally),
suicide prevention approaches and an opportunity to consider possible next steps was presented to
delegates present.

The abridged version of this presentation can be found at the following link in PDF Format

Workshop Discussions:

Three key questions were asked of delegates, with an opportunity to discuss for a 30-minute period of
time, before frank on key points. The questions were as follows:

Workshop Questions...

« What, in your opinion, are the key service gaps in
current provision regarding suicide prevention across
communities?

« What would excellent community based suicide
prevention provision look like?

« Please provide 3 priority areas that you think should be
included as an “absolute must” in a suicide prevention
strategy for communities for Coventry.

19 Page 35


http://forwardforlife.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/09/Suicide-Prevention_CoventryEvent.pdf

Workshop Responses:
Question 1: What, in your opinion, are the key service gaps in current provision
regarding suicide prevention across communities?

The responses have been grouped according to key areas of commonality?3:

A) Time:
e  Time —not enough of this is spent or available, trying to get to the root of problems/issues
e  Waiting time for counselling/other services
e  GP’s-time/approach

B) Knowledge:
e Lack of in depth information only stats
e  Stigma of suicide, how it is managed in agencies — recognition not stigma
e Lack of knowledge about organisations/lack of links between organisation
e Links to other areas of wellbeing and support
e Need to have a clear action plan when someone presents suicidal thoughts. This takes the
responsibility away from you as you know you have done everything you can to offer support.
e lack of clarity around responsibility
e  Gaps in information for public

C) Resources/Services
e 16-18 years’ gap — No adults /Children
e Links to other areas of wellbeing and support
e Lack of prevention support prior to “crisis”
e lLack of knowledge about organisations/lack of links between organisation
e Lack of peer mentoring
e GP’s—time/approach
e  Out of hours’ services / crisis team
e Mental health leads at GP surgeries
e Lack of services for isolated people
e  Support for children /teenagers
e  Advice for teachers
e  Gapsinintervention in general

D) Financial:
e  Funding

E) Training:
° Training/reflection upon ability to have difficult conversations or offer help
e Need to have a clear action plan when someone presents suicidal thoughts. This takes the
responsibility away from you as you know you have done everything you can to offer support.
e GP’s—time/approach
e Advice for teachers
e  More training in general

F) Planning:
e Lack of clarity around responsibility
e Gapsinintervention in general

23 please note responses have been duplicated where it is felt they fit into more than one category.

Bage 36



21

Question 2: What would excellent community based suicide prevention provision look
like?

A range of ideas were supplied in respect to “Community Facing” suicide prevention provision. Many
of these areas require little investment but would reap great rewards including the development of
network opportunities and building on intelligence through improved information.

There appears to be a range of options to be considered further in respect of providing opportunities
for upstream engagement in accessible, community based locations — For most of these areas
proposed, there is a relatively strong evidence base regarding suicide prevention including GP
Training, Buddy Services, Outreach work, Peer support and social media/technology development.

e  Develop inclusion in communities

e Things to do — places to go

e Build resilience

e Develop areas where people feel they can share information — have trust

e Training to identify and support (signs — symptoms and behaviour)

e Aplace/ someone to listen

e  Multi agency working

e  More outreach work e.g. Schools

e |mprove drop in services — more accessible with shorter waiting times

e  Services available to get people involved in activities which will support their wellbeing e.g. home visits
to support people to take part

e  More services for isolated people

e  Buddy services

e  Better information

e  GPtraining/awareness

e lessonus on drugs

e Better communication between services (consistency)

e On-line support

e  Peer support

e  Directory of resources

e Appropriate training — for frontline staff

e  Challenging ideas of suicide

e  Early intervention

e  Using different forms of media/tech to cascade messages

e  Peer support/group support

Page 37



Question 3: Please provide 3 priority areas that you think should be included as an

“absolute must” in a suicide prevention strategy for communities for Coventry.
The responses have been grouped according to key areas of commonality?*:

Education and Awareness Raising

e FEducating young people — schools etc.

e  FEducation for people with responsibility i.e. teacher / community leaders etc.

e Training

e Awareness Campaigns (inclusive, not “mental Healthy” responsible reporting — pressure on media)

Young People

e Support for children and young people
e Educating young people —schools etc.
e FEducation for people with responsibility i.e. teacher / community leaders etc.

Community Facing

e Community based projects
e ncreased outreach work

Joined Up Provision

e Aclear formalised referral pathway to specialised services and support meeting the clients need
e Multi agency network which is accessible and communicates effectively

e Joined up (unified response from all services — coordinated approach)

e  (Clear strategy for information sharing — multi-agency working

e  Better packages of care following first attempt

Funding

e Proper funding with infrastructure to support your clients

Risk Minimisation
° Alcohol abuse

24 please note responses have been duplicated where it is felt they fit into more than one category.

Bage 38



23

Appendix 3

References and Supporting Material

Data Sources
Updated annually unless otherwise stated.

Office of National Statistics, Suicide in the United Kingdom: 2014 registrations. Available from:
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicides
intheunitedkingdom/2014registrations [Accessed 20/09/2016]

Elizabeth Scowcroft (Samaritans), Suicide Statistics Report 2016, May 2016. Available from:
http://www.samaritans.org/about-us/our-research/facts-and-figures-about-suicide [Accessed 21/09/2016]

Public Health England, Public Health England Suicide Profile for Coventry [Accessed 21/09/2016] PHE produces
a Suicide Prevention Profile available on fingertips that gives suicide figures and statistics on suicide related
risk factors and service contacts.

University of Manchester, The National Confidential Inquiry into Suicide and Homicide by People with Mental
lliness, Annual Report 2015: England, Northern Ireland, Scotland and Wales, July 2015. (N.B. 2016 annual
report has been published since the strategy was written)

NHS Digital. Adult Psychiatric Morbidity Survey: Survey of Mental Health and Wellbeing, England, 2014.
Available from: http://ht.ly/byUk304GRIB (N.B. repeated every 7 years, latest report was not available at the
time of writing the 2016-19 strategy but has since been published)

Guidance Documents

Department of Health, Preventing Suicide in England: A Cross Government Outcomes Strategy to Save Lives,
September 2012. Available from: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/suicide-prevention-strategy-
for-england [Accessed 15/11/2016]

All-Party Parliamentary Group (APPG) on Suicide and Self-Harm Prevention. Provided updates in 2014 and
2015 with regards to progress against the 2012 strategy. At the time of writing a further inquiry is underway.
Available from: http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/health-
committee/inquiries/parliament-2015/suicide-prevention-inquiry/ [Accessed 15/11/2016]

Public Health England, Suicide Prevention Resources. Available from:
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/suicide-prevention-resources-and-guidance [Accessed
15/11/2016] Multiple links to PHE guidance including Suicide Prevention: creating a local action plan and
documents relating to specific problems e.g. LGBT suicide, suicide in public places).

World Health Organisation (WHO), Preventing Suicide: A Global Imperative. Available from:
http://www.who.int/topics/suicide/en/ [Accessed 15/11/2016]

Other Resources

University of Manchester: Centre for Mental Health and Safety http://research.omh.manchester.ac.uk/cmhs/
Useful resource for publications related to mental health and Suicide. Responsible for the National
Confidential Inquiry into Suicide and Homicide by People with Mental lliness Annual Report.

The Samaritans, Research Report: Men, Suicide and Society, why disadvantaged men in mid-life die by suicide
http://www.samaritans.org/about-us/our-research/research-report-men-suicide-and-society Research report
containing 5 articles looking at the topic of male suicide.

Liverpool Public Health Observatory, Rapid Evidence Review Series: Suicide Prevention Training, October 2014.
Available from:. https://www.liverpool.ac.uk/psychology-health-and-society/research/public-health-

Page 39


http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/2014registrations
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/2014registrations
http://www.samaritans.org/about-us/our-research/facts-and-figures-about-suicide
http://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental-health/profile/suicide/data
http://ht.ly/byUk304GRIB
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/suicide-prevention-strategy-for-england
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/suicide-prevention-strategy-for-england
http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/health-committee/inquiries/parliament-2015/suicide-prevention-inquiry/
http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/health-committee/inquiries/parliament-2015/suicide-prevention-inquiry/
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/suicide-prevention-resources-and-guidance
http://www.who.int/topics/suicide/en/
http://research.bmh.manchester.ac.uk/cmhs/
http://www.samaritans.org/about-us/our-research/research-report-men-suicide-and-society
https://www.liverpool.ac.uk/psychology-health-and-society/research/public-health-observatory/publications/report-series/

observatory/publications/report-series/ Concludes a stronger evidence base needed, but potentially GP
training indicated and upstream training in schools effective

Knapp M, McDaid D, Parsonage M (DoH, LSE Personal Social Services Resourse Unit), Mental Health Promotion
and Mental lliness Prevention: the economic case, April 2011. Available from: Section 2.11 and 2.12 show
evidence for cost effective methods of suicide prevention, again GP training seen to be worthwhile.
http://www.pssru.ac.uk/blogs/blog/population-level-suicide-awareness-training-and-intervention/ Blog
update to figures in 2014.

Feltz-Cornelis, CM et al, Best Practice Elements of Multilevel Suicide Prevention Strategies: a review of
systematic reviews, Crisis (2011). Available from: http://econtent.hogrefe.com/doi/abs/10.1027/0227-
5910/a000109 [Accessed 25/10/2016]. Netherlands review of evidence — GP and community gatekeeper
training, reducing access to fatal means, targeting high risks groups, sensitive journalistic approaches and
public awareness campaigns provided there is access to support available are all potentially effective.

Public Health England/Health Education England, Mental Health Promotion and Prevention Training
Programmes, September 2016.

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment _data/file/558676/Mental_health pro
motion_and_prevention_training_programmes.pdf Compilation list of Mental Health and Suicide prevention
programmes available across the country including approximate costings and links to evaluations.

Moulin L, Aiming for Zero Suicides: an evaluation of a whole system approach to suicide prevention in the East
of England, October 2015 Available from: https://www.centreformentalhealth.org.uk/zero-suicides Evaluation
of experience of a similar strategy in place in East of England — recommendation includes training for health
and police services, importance of working with the coroner, and emphasised ongoing importance of
evaluation and evidence building.

Important National Groups
The following groups produce evidence and guidance that have informed the development of this strategy.

The Samaritans http://www.samaritans.org/

National Suicide Prevention Alliance http://www.nspa.org.uk/

Survivors of Bereavement by Suicide (SOBS) http://uk-sobs.org.uk/

Support After Suicide Partnership (SASP) http://www.supportaftersuicide.org.uk/ Available from here is the
‘Help is at Hand’ the booklet created in conjunction with DoH, PHE, NSPA and TASC to support anyone
bereaved by suicide.

Rage 40


https://www.liverpool.ac.uk/psychology-health-and-society/research/public-health-observatory/publications/report-series/
http://www.pssru.ac.uk/blogs/blog/population-level-suicide-awareness-training-and-intervention/
http://econtent.hogrefe.com/doi/abs/10.1027/0227-5910/a000109
http://econtent.hogrefe.com/doi/abs/10.1027/0227-5910/a000109
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/558676/Mental_health_promotion_and_prevention_training_programmes.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/558676/Mental_health_promotion_and_prevention_training_programmes.pdf
https://www.centreformentalhealth.org.uk/zero-suicides
http://www.samaritans.org/
http://www.nspa.org.uk/
http://uk-sobs.org.uk/
http://www.supportaftersuicide.org.uk/

Agenda Iltem 5
o

VA

Coventry City Council Briefing note

To: Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board (5) Date: 25 July 2018

Subject: Work Programme

1. Purpose of the Note

1.1. This note is to assist Members in identifying work programme items.
2. Recommendations

2.1. That Members of the Board identify items for the work programme.

3. Information/Background

3.1. At the All Members informal meeting on 18th June, Members were informed of the
Corporate and Directorate priorities for the coming year. The suggestions for Health
and Social Care Scrutiny Board identified at this meeting were;

a. Mental health barriers to accessing services and benefits

b. Entitlement to Free Hospital Treatment — how decisions are taken to
request the information and support to those who need it, for example with
mental health issues, to provide the required evidence.

c. Childhood Obesity

d. Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services — focus on assessment
times and early intervention

e. Talking Therapies waiting times

f. Self Harming — support by schools, colleges and Universities

g. Drug and Alcohol Abuse

3.2. The work programme with items carried forward from 2017-18 is attached at
Appendix A.

3.3.Members are asked to consider the inclusion of these items in the Board’s Work
Programme.

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board Work Programme 2018/19 25t July, 2018

Please see page 2 onwards for background to items

251 July 2018

- Suicide Prevention

12th September 2018

- Better Care, Better Health, Better Value Programme update

- An overview of Adult Social Care performance, achievements and challenges including
the Adult Social Care Annual Report 2017-18 (Local Account)

- Adult Safeguarding Annual Report 2017/18

17th October 2018

- CQC Action Plan update

- Director of Public Health Annual Report

- Update on Report back from the Task and Finish Group on improving the quality of
Housing and the Health and Wellbeing of Coventry Residents

21st November 2018

19th December 2018

30th January 2019

6th March 2019

10t April 2019

2018/19

- Integrated Care Systems

- A&E Performance at UHCW, including feedback from winter 2017/18

- Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services

- Primary Care

- Female Genital Mutilation

- Employment and Mental Health

- Improving Support — enablement approach for adults with disabilities

- Digital Strategy - Improved Customer Service — reviewing the customer journey and
expanding use of digital technologies including Primary Care Digital Strategy

- UHCW CQC Inspection Outcome

Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

- Stroke Services

Page 43



vt abed

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board Work Programme 2018/19

Date Title Detail Cabinet Context
Member/ Lead
Officer
25t July - Suicide Prevention Scrutiny have asked to look at Suicide Liz Gaulton/ Request from
2018 Prevention and understand how services are Jane Fowles Scrutiny
provided across the City to support those who
are vulnerable. They would like to focus on how
information about the services gets out,
particularly to young men.
12th - Better Care, Better To consider the work programme for the next Andy Hardy Supports the Better
September Health, Better Value 12 months and challenges and risks in Health, Better
2018 Programme update achieving this. Care, Better Value
Programme
- An overview of Adult An annual item to consider this report. To Pete Fahy Organisational
Social Care include feedback on new supervision regime as requirements -
performance, discussed at the meeting on 18t October during CCC
achievements and the item on Workforce Development Strategy.
challenges including
the Adult Social Care
Annual Report 2017-18
(Local Account)
- Adult Safeguarding Annual Report received by the Board. In Joan Beck/ Organisational
Annual Report 2017/18 | 2017/18, the Board requested the next report Eira Hale requirements -
included information on the engagement CCC
strategy and contribution to the Board’s work
from Partners, for example probation and
housing associations.
17th October | - CQC Action Plan To include presenting the performance Pete Fahy Request from

2018

update

dashboard, including a specific focus on A&E
performance.

Scrutiny @ meeting
on 26.04.18




G obed

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board Work Programme 2018/19

Date Title Detail Cabinet Context
Member/ Lead
Officer
- Director of Public To present information on the annual report for | Liz Gaulton Organisational
Health Annual Report | and feedback on progress from previous requirements -
reports. CCC
- Update on Report back | To look at progress on the recommendations Liz Gaulton/ Request from
from the Task and approved at the meeting on 31st January 2018. | Karen Lees Scrutiny @ meeting
Finish Group on Going to Cabinet 61" March 2018 and review 6 on 31.01.18
improving the quality of | months after that.
Housing and the
Health and Wellbeing
of Coventry Residents
21st -
November
2018
19th -
December
2018
30t January | -
2019
6t March -
2019
10th April -
2019
2018/19 - Integrated Care To follow up on the item on Integrated Care Gail Quinton/ Request from

Systems

Systems as discussed at the meeting on 7t
March 2018 at an appropriate time.

Andrea Green

Scrutiny @ meeting
on 07.03.18

- A&E Performance at
UHCW, including
feedback from winter
2017/18

The Board would like an update on A&E
performance figures, including feedback on how
robust plans to improve performance over
winter proved to be.

Andy Hardy

Request from
Scrutiny @ meeting
on 26.04.18




o abed

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board Work Programme 2018/19

Date Title Detail Cabinet Context
Member/ Lead
Officer
- Child and Adolescent To receive an update on the transformation plan | Matt Gilks/ Supports the Better
Mental Health Services | including waiting times for assessment and Alan Butler Health, Better

treatment, services for Looked After Children
and transition between children’s and Adults
Services.

Care, Better Value
Programme

Primary Care

An item to look at Primary Care, including the
recruitment and retention of GPs and
Supporting Self Care

Andrea Green

Request from
Scrutiny 21.11.17

- Female Genital To receive an update at the appropriate time, Liz Gaulton Organisational
Mutilation on the partnership work being undertaken to Clir Caan requirements -

address FGM. CCC

- Employment and To consider the work being undertaken to Simon Gilby Supports the Better
Mental Health improve the mental health of those living in the Health, Better

City to enable them to gain/maintain Care, Better Value
employment. This links to the work being Programme
undertaken by the WMCA Mental Health

Commission.

- Improving Support — Following discussion on the Adult Social Care Request from
enablement approach | Annual Report 2016-17 (Local Account) at the Scrutiny @ meeting
for adults with meeting on 13.09.17, this item was identified as on 13.09.17
disabilities a topic for scrutiny.

- Digital Strategy - Following discussion on the Adult Social Care Marc Request from
Improved Customer Annual Report 2016-17 (Local Account) at the Greenwood/ Scrutiny @ meeting

Service — reviewing the
customer journey and
expanding use of
digital technologies
including Primary Care
Digital Strategy

meeting on 13.09.17, this item was identified as
a topic for scrutiny. To include opportunities to
use digital platforms from across the health
service and social care. Primary Care Digital
Strategy identified 21.11.17

Health partners

on 13.09.17 &
21.11.17




/v abed

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board Work Programme 2018/19

Date Title Detail Cabinet Context
Member/ Lead
Officer
- UHCW CQC To scrutinise the outcome of the recent CQC Andy Hardy
Inspection Outcome inspection of UHCW.
Joint Health | - Stroke Services There is a proposal to change the way stroke Andrea Green | Better Health,
Overview services are provided across Coventry and Better Care, Better
and Scrutiny Warwickshire. The Board will receive Value Programme
Committee information on the proposals at the meeting and

have the opportunity to feed into the
consultation on the changes.




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Suicide Prevention
	Coventry Suicide Prevention Strategy - Appendix

	5 Work Programme 2018-19
	Work Programme SB5 2018-19


